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On December 12, 1975, Complainant, who had earned a masters degree in adult education and several years 
experience teaching in, and administering programs in adult basic education, and English as a Second 
Language, spoke to Respondent, Dr. Sara Sherkow, Chair of the General Studies Division of Respondent 
Madison Area Technical College, about possible job opportunities in her areas of qualification in the 
Division. By December 16, 1975, Dr. Sherkow had received from Complainant a completed application for 
employment, (Complainant's exhibit 1) and a resume (Complainant's exhibit 2). Subsequently, Complainant 
received a letter signed by Respondent Sherkow dated January 9, 1976 informing her that no openings for 
which she was qualified were anticipated for the next school year. 

On January 20, 1976, Respondents hired Mr. Nicolo Famiglietti as a part time "coach/tutor" in the 
Instructional Learning Center, a facility for students in Adult Basic Education and English as a Second 
Language courses. 

The hiring of Mr. Famiglietti and reject of Ms. Newton was the basis for the original complaint filed with the 
Madison Equal Opportunities Commission on March 8, 1976. 

I 

The respective burdens of proof in cases of charges of discrimination in hiring were set forth by the U. S. 
Supreme Court in McDonnell Douglas vs. Greene 411 US 792, 5 PEP 965 (1973) as follows:

"(i) he belongs to a racial minority; (ii) that he applied, and was qualified for a job for which the 
employer was seeking applicants; (iii) that despite his qualifications he was rejected; and (iv) that 
after his rejection, the position remained open and the employer continued to seek applicants 
from persons of complainant's qualifications."
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Upon completion of a complainant's case containing some credible evidence of each of these points, the 
burden or proceeding passes to the respondent. I£ the respondent can show a 

"legitimate nondiscriminatory reason for the discharge" (Flowers  vs. Crouch Walker Corp. 14 PEP at 1269, 
McDonnell Douglas vs. Green 5 PEP at 969) the respondent is entitled to prevail, unless the complainant can 
show that respondent's nondiscriminatory reason was mere pretext for prohibited discrimination. McDonnell 
Douglas vs. Green 5 PEP 970. 

As the court foresaw, the specific elements of those standards must be modified to accommodate differing 
factual situations. McDonnell Douglas vs. Green, supra at 5 PEP 969 note 13. 

In this particular case the complainant must prove: 

(1) that she is a female 
(2) that she applied for a position for which she was qualified, and for which a job opening existed 
(3) that despite her qualifications she was rejected 
(4) that a male was hired. 

There is no controversy as to the elements of the Complainant's case. Judith Ann Newton is a female. She did 
apply for positions in the Adult Basic Education Program. Parties stipulated that she was qualified for the 
position filled by Famiglietti. And she was rejected in favor of employing Mr. Famiglietti. 

Respondent set forth two reasons for choosing to employ Mr. Famiglietti rather than Ms. Newton. Those 
arguments must be held to the test of "legitimate nondiscriminatory reasons  for Complainant's rejection." 

"Mr. Famiglietti was hired for two very significant reasons. One, on his application blank and in his 
conference with me in my office he stated that he had experience teaching oriental language speaking 
people . . . It was an experience that we need and we wanted because we had a great influx of Orientals; 
Vietnamese, and we needed someone who had that kind of background .

. . . Secondly, we have our own affirmative action program under which I was supposed to operate, which 
states (and which was accepted by the State Vocational Board) that affirmative action for us meant that we 
world try to equal the balance of men and women and minorities in our school. This particular program had 
an in ordinate number of women and we wished to hire a man to balance the program." (Testimony of Dr. 
Sara Sherkow) 

As to the first of these asserted reasons, Mr. Famiglietti's experience with "Orientals," according to Dr. 
Sherkow MATC was expecting an enrollment of as many as 300 Vietnamese in its English as a Second 
Language courses (Testimony of Dr. Sherkow and Respondent's brief pages 6-7.

Mr. Famiglietti had apparently taught English to Japanese people at the YMCA in Yokahama, Japan for a 
period of 18 months.

Respondents contend "that Dr. Sherkow was Chairperson of  the General Studies Division, and accordingly, 
was entrusted with the judgment of this type of determination and second guessing by third party experts is of 
no relevancy to this case." (Respondent's Brief page 7) 

Respondent is correct in this assertion. Further the Examiner's function is not to "second guess" the 
Respondent's decisions on academic qualifications. However, when asserted superior qualifications are given 
as a reason for hiring a man rather than a woman (or vice versa) we "must be extremely careful at a to 
determine that the reasons given for selecting a male applicant over a female applicant are not simply a ruse 
disguising true discrimination." Pond vs. Braniff Airways, Inc. 400 F.2d. 161, ,8 FEP 659 at 662 (USCA 5th 
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1974) and Respondent must assume the burden of proving this justification by a preponderance of the 
evidence. Ostapowicz vs. Johnson Bronze Co. 13 FEP 517 at 521 (USCA 3d 1976).

The Examiner finds that Respondents have failed to carry that burden. Specifically the only evidence of the 
superiority of Mr. Famiglietti's qualifications is Dr. Sherkow's repeated assertion that she felt that 
Famiglietti's experience teaching English to Japanese people for 18 months gave him knowledge of dealing 
with orientals and oriental language that would be useful in dealing with the expected influx of Vietnamese 
students. 

The uncontested evidence of two witnesses seriously undermines those assertions. First, Famiglietti was not 
employed to work with many Vietnamese. Ms. Jean Orellana, who occupied Famiglietti's position 
immediately prior to him, and who was the Coordinator of the Instructional Learning Center while 
Famiglietti was employed in it, testified that (1) most oriental students were enrolled in formal English as a 
Second Language classes; (2) Famiglietti was not assigned to teach any of those classes; (3) Ms. Orellana 
never worked with any oriental students while she worked as a coach/tutor in the ILC; 4) Very few oriental 
students made use of the ILC where Famiglietti was employed; (5) During his employment at the ILC, very 
few oriental students used that facility; and (6) In all probability, Mr. Famiglietti worked with no more than 
three oriental students while he was employed at MATC (Tape 2, Side 1). 

So perhaps the projected influx of Vietnamese students would have made it useful to have persons with 
oriental backgrounds for some positions involving substantial contact with them. But, for the position in 
question, it was not. 

The job Complainant was rejected for, and that which Famiglietti got, had little or nothing to do with 
teaching English to any oriental. 

Second, the testimony of Dr. John Street, Ph.D., Professor of Linguistics and former chair of the Department 
of Linguistics at the University of Wisconsin, and a long time student of the Japanese language, with two 
years experience assisting Vietnamese in learning English, casts serious doubt on whether Famiglietti's 
Japanese experience was of any use in teaching English to Vietnamese. 

He testified that in his opinion, Japanese and Vietnamese are "about as different as any two languages can 
be," and that all the problems involved in teaching English to Japanese and Vietnamese were extremely 
dissimilar (Tape 1, Side 2). Professor Street ended his testimony by commenting on "the unfortunate 
tendency, which we all have, to lump together orientals. We tend to think Japanese, Chinese, Vietnamese, 
Cambodians -- all the same . . . 

There is no linguistic basis for putting together oriental languages, none whatever." (Tape 1, Side 2) 

Further, no evidence was presented by Respondents of any cultural or other similarities between Vietnam and 
Japan that might justify a belief that experience with Japanese would be of any value in dealing with 
Vietnamese students. Dr. Sherkow stated that she was aware of the linguistic differences between Vietnamese 
and Japanese (Tape 5, Side 2). 

Because uncontradicted evidence shows clearly that Mr. Famiglietti was not hired into a position to deal with 
the large influx of Vietnamese students, and that his experience did not specially fit him to deal with such 
student's language learning problems, the Examiner is unconvinced that Famiglietti's experience in Japan was 
in fact a basis for choosing him instead of Ms. Newton for the position filled on January 20, 1976.1
Respondent has failed to prove that Mr. Famiglietti's superior qualifications were the basis for its 
employment decision. 

Respondent's admit that sex was a significant factor in the decision to reject Ms. Newton and hire Mr. 
Famiglietti. 
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However, they attempt to defend that on the grounds that the Affirmative Action Plan for MATC mandated 
hiring males to balance the faculty in those departments where instructors were predominantly female, as was 
the case with the General Studies Division. Dr. Sherkow (see above), Norman Mitby, District Director of 
MATC (Tape 3, Sides 1 and 2) and Richard Harris, MATC's Affirmative Action Officer (Tape 4, Side 1) 
agree that the college had an informal, unwritten goal to, balance faculty, by hiring white males (as well as 
males of other races). These white male goals were not written into the formal Affirmative Action Plans for 
1975, 1976 and 1977 because white males "were and could not be considered the group affected by 
discrimination." (Richard Harris Tape 4, Side 2) Some goals for hiring of males were included in the 1974 
Affirmative Action Plan (Complainant's exhibit 42). 

However, no such goals for General Studies Division faculty were included. So, it appears that no such goals 
for hiring males to balance females in ,the faculty of the General Studies Division were submitted to any 
State or Federal agency requiring, reviewing or approving MATC's Affirmative Action Program. 

Nor was there a belief by the Affirmative Action Officer that such hiring goals for white males were required 
by any agency that mandated Affirmative Action by MATC. In response to the Examiner's question: "Did 
you think at some point that . . . increasing the proportion of white males in a given department was required 
by some mandated Affirmative Action program having to do with receipt of federal funds or some . . ." 
Richard Harris responded: "No. No." (Tape 4, Side 2) 

Messrs. Mitby and Harris were also questioned about the reasons for this informal male hiring goal. Mitby 
testified that the reasons for the small number of males in the faculty of certain MATC programs was not 
related to any past practice of excluding them, but rather to the low availability of males in some areas. As an 
example he mentioned health care programs (Tape 3, Side 1) 

Mr. Harris also agreed that the reasons for these male hiring goals were not related to redressing past 
discrimination. (Tape 4, Side 2) 

Affirmative Action Plans granting employment preference to women and minority group members have been 
upheld under both Constitutional equal protection, and Title VII challenges. Associated General Contractors 
of Massachussetts vs. Altschuler 990 F.2d F.2d 9, 6 FEP 1013 (USCA 1st 1973) cert. den. 416 US 957. 7 
FEP 1160 (1970); Contractors Association of Eastern Pennsylvania vs. Secretary of Labor 442 F.2d 159, 3 
FEP 395, (USCA 3d 1971) cert. den. 404 US 854, 3 FEP 1030 (1971); Southern Illinois Builders Association 
vs. Ogilvie 471 F.2d 680, 5 FEP 229 (USCA 7th 1972); Taterka vs. Wisconsin Telephone Co. 395 F.Supp. 
862, 10 FEP 966 (USDC EDWis 1975); McAleer vs. American Telephone and Telegraph Co. 12 FEP 1473, 
(USDC DC 1976); German vs. Kipp 429 F.Supp. 1323, 14 FEP 1197 (1977) and have been accepted as a 
defense to charges of "reverse discrimination" McAleer vs. AT&T (supra). To the best of Examiner's 
knowledge, this is the first case in which such an Affirmative Action Plan involving preferences for white 
males has been urged as a defense against a complaint of sex discrimination filed by a female. 

Affirmative Action Plans have also been found to violate Title VII. Anderson vs. San Francisco Unified 
School District 357 F.Supp 248, 5 PEP 362 (USDC ND Cal. 1972), Hiatt vs. City of Berkely 12 FEP 937 
(USDC ND Cal. 1975) 

On its face, granting employment preference to members of any race or sex group is a violation of Madison 
General Ordinances s 3.23(7) (a) (b) which states: 

"(7) Employment Practices. It shall be an unfair discrimination practice and unlawful and hereby 
prohibited: 

(a) For any person or employer individually or in concert with others to fail or refuse 
to hire or to discharge any individual, or otherwise to discriminate against any 
individual with respect to his compensation, terms, conditions, or privileges of 
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employment, because of such individual's sex, race, religion, color, national origin 
or ancestry, age, handicap, marital status, source on income, arrest record or 
conviction record, less than honorable discharge, physical appearance, sexual 
orientation, political beliefs or the fact that such person is a student as defined 
herein. Provided, that an employer who is discriminating with respect to 
compensation in violation of this subsection, shall not, in order to comply with the 
provisions of this subsection, reduce the wage rate of any employee. 

(b) For any person or employer individually or in concert with others to limit, 
segregate, or classify his or her employees or applicants for employment in any way 
which would deprive or tend to deprive any individual of  employment opportunities 
or otherwise adversely affect his or her status as an employee, because of such 
individual's sex, race, religion, color, national origin or ancestry, age, handicap, 
marital status, source of income, arrest record or conviction record, less than 
honorable discharge, physical appearance, sexual orientation, political beliefs or the 
fact that such person is a student as defined herein." 

However, in the cases cited above, certain circumstances have been found to justify the use of such 
preferences. In a Constitutional context: 

"The first Justice Harlan's much quoted observation that 'the Constitution (is colorblind) . . . 
(and) does not . . . permit any public authority to know the race of those entitled to be protected 
in the enjoyment of such rights'. Plesse vs. Ferguson 163 U.S. 537, 554, 16 S.Ct. 1138, 1145, 41 
L.Ed. 256 (1896) (dissenting opinion) has come to represent a long-term goal. It is by now well 
understood, however, that our society cannot be completely colorblind in the short term if we are 
to have a colorblind society in the long term. After centuries of viewing through colored lenses, 
eyes do not quickly adjust when the lenses are removed. Discrimination has a way of 
perpetuating itself, albeit unintentionally, because the resulting inequalities make new 
opportunities less accessible. Preferential treatment is one partial prescription to remedy our 
society's most intransigent and deeply rooted inequalities." Associated General Contractors of 
Massachusetts, Inc. vs. Altschuler supra at 490 F.2d 16 

"There are good reasons why the use of racial criteria should be strictly scrutinized and given 
legal sanction only where a compelling need for remedial action can be shown. Norwalk Core vs. 
Norwalk Redevelopment Agency 395 F.2d 920, 931-32 (2d Circuit 1969)" Associated General 
Contractors of Massachusetts vs. Atschuleb supra at 17 

Such strict scrutinizing of Affirmative Action programs granting some employment preference is as 
appropriate under the Equal Opportunities Ordinance (Madison General ordinances 3.23) and other 
nondiscrimination laws as in above context. And it is clear that without some showing of the need to remedy 
past discrimination (not necessarily an admission of past discrimination) such preferences are impermissible. 

"It is true that a voluntary program of affirmative action runs the risk of infringing unnecessarily 
the rights of nonminority individuals. As the Supreme Court of California stated in Bakke vs. 
Regents of University of California, 553 P.2d 1152, 1171 (Cal. 1976), now pending before the 
United Stated Supreme Court on writ of certiorari, "Originated as a means of exclusion of racial 
and religious minorities . . . a quota becomes no less offensive when it serves to exclude a racial 
majority.' In the absence of a finding of specific past discrimination requiring specific relief, 
there can be no doubt that an employer must make a clear and convincing showing of an 
acceptable basis for the affirmative action plan which is temporarily imposed and reasonable 
drawn to meet the demonstrated need. While such a showing admittedly places a difficult burden 
of justification upon an employer, this Court believes that an employer who meets that burden 
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may establish the valifity of a plan which grants a preference to minorities even if it necessarily 
results in detriment to the majority. Whenever there is a limited pool of resources from which 
minorities have been disproportionately excluded, equalization of opportunity can only be 
accomplished by reallocation of those resources. In that process, detriment to nonminorities is 
inevitable. Nevertheless, the effects of discrimination in this country run deep and wise, see e.g., 
Oregon vs. Mitchell, 400 U.S. 112 (1970), and upon an appropriate showing, by means carefully-
drawn, and temporarily-imposed to meet the requirements of Executive Order No. 11246, in 
attempting to remedy that discrimination, a voluntary affirmative action plan may withstand a 
challenge that it discriminates invidiously against members of nonminority groups. While 
fraught with particularly sensitive social and constitutional considerations, this conclusion 
appears the one most consistent with the fundamental interests of all races and with the design of 
the Constitution itself. Recent decisions by the United States Supreme Court support this 
conclusion." Germann vs. Kipp 429 F.Supp. 1323, 14 FEP 1197 at 1205 (USDC Mo 1977) 

"Thus, any classification based on race is suspect. Such classifications have been allowed by the 
courts, but only to correct past discriminatory practices. In the instant case there has been no 
showing that the classifications and discriminations on the basis of race to be put into effect by 
the defendant school district, are to be undertaken to correct past discrimination. 

"No authority presently exists to uphold a practice which discriminates on racial or ethnic lines 
which is not being implemented to correct prior discriminatory situation." Anderson vs. San 
Francisco School District 5 FEP 362 (USDC ND Cal. 1972) 

In the instant case, no such showing has been made. In fact, Respondent's Affirmative Action Officer clearly 
stated that white males were not discriminated against. Mr. Mitby's testimony as to the reasons why males 
were under-represented in some areas of MATC's faculty resolves itself to the fact that women filled most 
jobs, in certain areas of employment because men didn't want that kind of position. 

In summary, under laws prohibiting sex discrimination in employment, an affirmative action hiring 
preference for one sex may only be sanctioned if a showing is made that some type of past discrimination2

calls out for remedy. 

Respondent's preference for males in the position for a which Complainant applied is not based on a desire to 
remedy a past inequity. Respondent has made no showing of such an inequity. Testimony of MATC's officers 
contradicts the existence of such a historic problem. 

It appears that these unwritten, informal goals were based on a misunderstanding of affirmative action. 
Affirmative action is not a mechanistic balancing of ratios of employees to population, or student body, or 
anything else. It is a complex and extraordinary measure that is justified only by a need to overcome major 
historic patterns of discrimination and injustice.

Numerical tallies play a part, as a measure of progress. But they do not by themselves justify the 
classification of employees or applicants on the basis of race or sex. The fact that the goals for hiring of 
males to balance females clerical staff were removed from affirmative action plans of  1975, 1976 and 1977 
and that the male hiring goals for other departments were only informal and not committed to writing, 
suggests that Respondents were aware of some of the problems involved in such goals. 

Respondents testified to two reasons for their male hiring goals. First, students relate better to teachers of 
their own sex, and therefore, more male teachers were needed because the proportion of male students to 
female students was much greater than the proportion of male to female teachers. (Testimony of Mr. Mitby, 
Tape 3)
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First, Respondent has not carried its burden of proving that male students would relate better to male 
teachers, or what significance that would have for successful teaching of English to non-English speaking 
adults. The only evidence is insubstantiated opinion of Respondents. That is not sufficient. 

Second, such a balancing of student/staff ratios was the asserted basis for the affirmative action plan 
challenged in Anderson vs. San Francisco School District supra at 363. The Court rejected that basis, stating 
that such programs "have been allowed by the courts only to correct past discriminatory practices." supra 
(emphasis in the original) 

Another rationale advanced (by Mr. Harris) is that increasing the number of males as both students and 
teachers in predominantly female professions (such as health care) would tend to increase the status and 
perhaps the salaries of persons in those professions. While this may be true for nursing or secretarial careers, 
the case here involves teaching adults to speak English, and more or less male teachers will not increase the 
status or pay of speaking English.

II

As to the charges of retaliation against Ms. Newton by Respondents, there are four separate situations 
discussed in the record which Complainant could have been considered for employment after she filed her 
original complaint of sex discrimination: (1) March of 1976 when Dr. Sherkow hired at least one part time 
employee (Testimony of Jean Orellana, Tape 1). Dr. Sherkow and Ms. Orellana are in agreement that Dr. 
Sherkow stated at that time that Complainant would not be hired because of her pending EOC complaint. The 
Examiner finds that Respondents excluded Complainant from consideration for employment because of her 
filing a charge with the EOC, and that such exclusion violates Madison General ordinances 3.23 (7) (e). 

"The record indicates that Sara Sherkow by her own acknowledgement in early 1976 was under the 
impression that Judith Newton should not be hired at the College. Her testimony further indicates that her 
position was based upon advice of counsel that the status quo should not be changed, because Judith Newton 
had filed a complaint with various agencies. She believed that because Judith Newton was not on the staff at 
the time of the complaint, that putting her on the staff would be changing the status quo." (Respondent's 
Brief, page 11) That Respondent's actions were taken at the advice of counsel, or the misunderstood advise of 
counsel is not a defense against the charge of retaliation. Respondents admit that they refused to consider 
Complainant for part time employment in the spring of 1976, and that that refusal was based upon the filing 
of charges of discrimination with various agencies, among them the Madison Equal Opportunities 
Commission. 

A different situation existed for filling two full time vacancies as Coordinator Teacher and Teacher in the 
Adult Basic Education Program. Complainant's exhibits 14, 16 and 17 and Testimony of Mary Celnicker 
(Tape 5, Side 1) Dr. Sherkow did not attempt to exclude Ms. Newton from consideration for that position. 
Rather, the Committee that reviewed applicants did not recommend Complainant for employment, and Dr. 
Sherkow did not attempt to influence that Committee. The Examiner found no retaliation involved in the 
selection for this position. 

There is also testimony by Ms. Newton that she spoke with Dr. Sherkow during the week of August 1-7, 
1976, and that during that conversation Dr. Sherkow asked Complainant whether she would drop her 
complaint if she were offered a full-time position. Tape 1, Side 1. This testimony is to some degree 
substantiated by Mr. Harris (Tape 4, Side 2), and is not denied by Respondents. However, since Dr. Sherkow 
was not involved in the rejection of Ms. Newton for these positions no retaliatory action can be ascribed to 
Respondents as a result of this conversation. 

Finally, while Dr. Sherkow was on leave from MATC, Ms. Newton was hired by Herman Freymiller, 
Assistant Chair of the General Studies Division, who was at that time acting chair. There was no evidence of 
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retaliation in Mr. Freymiller's hiring of Ms. Newton. Nor was evidence presented that showed any retaliation 
since Ms. Newton's employment.

However, this does not rebut the evidence that retaliation occurred in March of 1976, ten months earlier.3

III

In summary, the Examiner finds that the Respondents discriminated against Complainant on the basis of sex 
in its employment decision of January 20, 1976. Respondents failed to prove by a prependerance of the 
evidence that experience teaching Japanese people to speak English was a legitimate nondiscriminatory 
reason for the rejection of Ms. Newton and the hiring of Mr. Famiglietti. 

Respondents admit that sex was a significant factor in their decision in that they gave preference to male 
applicants for the position in question, as part of an unwritten, informal affirmative action goal. Such 
preferences may be justified in order to remedy historic patterns of discrimination. However, Respondents 
have shown no evidence of such patterns, and in fact attribute the deficiency of males in some positions to 
non-discriminatory causes. Nor have Respondents provided sufficient evidence to justify their other reasons 
for such preferences, if indeed it is possible to justify them on any basis other than past discrimination. This 
constitutes sex discrimination, and is prohibited by Madison General Ordinances 3.23(7)(a)(b). 

During March of 1976, Respondents excluded Complainant from consideration for employment because she 
had complained of sex discrimination to the Equal Opportunities Commission, as well as other agencies. This 
is retaliation and is prohibited by Madison General Ordinances 3.23(7)(e). 

Complainant has failed to prove that her failure to be hired to fill either of the full time positions filled in 
August, 1976 was a result of retaliation by Respondents. 

It remains to establish the appropriate actions by Respondent to bring itself into conformity with the terms of 
the Madison Equal Opportunities Ordinance. 

Complainant in a letter to the Examiner dated September 21, 1977 stated that she seeks $7,322.64. 

Leaving aside for the moment, the question of back pay and interest, the Equal Opportunities Ordinance 
makes no provision for payments for "child care, subpoena fees, zeroxing (sic), expert witness compensation, 
consulting fees and expenses, or travel, telephone, postage, notary fees, etc.," all of which Complainant 
requested. No such amounts shall be required of Respondent.

As to back pay, Respondent contends that Madison General Ordinances 3.23(10) (c) (3): "interim earnings or 
amounts earnable with reasonable diligence by the person discriminated against shall operate to reduce back 
pay otherwise allowable." requires that Ms. Newton's earnings as a part time teacher at Omega School be 
deducted from any back pay amount. 

Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 contains almost identical language. "Interim earnings or amounts 
earnable with reasonable diligency by the person or persons discriminated against shall operate to reduce the 
back pay otherwise allowable." 42 USC s2000 e-5 (g) . 

The U. S. Court of Appeals for the 5th Circuit addressed the question of deduction of part time wages from 
back pay awards (moonlighting) in Bing vs. Roadway Express, Inc. 485 F.2d 441, 6 FEP 677 (1973). 

"We are left with the problem of deciding whether Bing's moonlight earnings are interim earnings. We will not attempt a definitive 
construction of the term 'interim earnings.' 'Interim' is synonymous with temporary or provisional. See Webster's Third New 
International Dictionary (1964). If a supplemental or moonlight job is one that the discriminatee cannot perform when he wins his 
new position, the supplemental job is necessarily temporary, provisional or 'interim.' By contrast, if one can hold his supplemental 
job and his desired full time job simultaneously and there is reason to believe he will do so, the supplemental job assumes a 
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permanent rather than interim nature. Those earnings would be independent of the position sought and should not be taken into 
account in back pay calculations. Since the trial court found that it would be impossible for Bing to moonlight while working sixty 
to one hundred hours a week as a road driver, it correctly concluded that his moonlight earnings were interim and deductible from 
his back pay award. They were earnable that could continue only until he won his new position." 6 FEP at 687 

Circumstances in the instant case differ from those in Bing. The job Ms. Newton applied for was only part 
time. Her job at Omega School was also part time. The testimony of Mr. Jerry Pockar shows that Ms. Newton 
could have performed both jobs simultaneously. (Tape 6, side 2) Consequently, her earnings at Omega 
School should not be deducted from the back pay calculated as due Complainant.

Consequently, the amount of back pay due Ms. Newton should be calculated on the following basis: 

1. Complainant should be paid for twenty (20) hours per week for every week the staff was employed in 
the ILC from January 20, 1976 through December 31, 1976. 

2. That pay should be calculated at the rate paid to an employee classified IV, I on Respondent's pay 
scale, the classification that she was hired in in 1977. Evidence of Mr. Mitby (Tape 6, Side 2) indicates 
that Ms. Newton would have been hired at that rate in 1976. 

3. Back pay shall include an increase of $0.50 per hour for the time between July 12 and December 31, 
1976 inclusive.

4. In addition, any additional longevity or experience pay at Complainant would have been eligible for 
after her hiring in 1977, had she had an additional one year of experience teaching at MATC, shall be 
paid for the hours worked by Complainant from January 1977 to the present. 

5. Complainant shall be credited with an additional one year part time teaching experience at MATC for 
all purposes of benefits, salary, and competitive status, for which experience or seniority is considered. 
(See Franks vs. Bowman Transportation Inc.; 2 FEP 549 (US 1976) 

6. Interest at the rate of 6 percent per annum shall be paid on all back pay. 

1Complainant also introduced evidence that teaching English to non-English speakers in their own country (English as a Foreign 
Language) presents different problems than teaching it to non-English speakers in an English speaking country (English as a 
Second Language). Mr. Famiglietti's experience was with English as a Foreign Language. Whether or not the differences are so 
great as to render Famiglietti's experience irrelevant to English as a Second Language program is not so clear as to support a 
finding to that effect. 

2 This does not imply that an employer need admit individual violation of the law in order to engage in affirmative action. But as 
Germann vs. Kipp supra points out, it must be able to make a showing of such past practices and their current effects, as will justify 
use of an employment preference that would otherwise be illegal. Such past actions need not even be attributable to the employer. 
In Associated General Contractors supra the court found discrimination y the building trades unions sufficient to justify affirmative 
action by the State of Massachusetts and its construction contractors.

3Respondents manifest some concern and consternation that Dr. Sherkow is being labeled a misogynist by this complaint. That is 
not the case. There is absolutely no proof of such an attitude on the part of Dr. Sherkow. Nor is there any need to find such attitudes 
on the part of Respondents (Rowe vs. General Motors 457 F.2d 348, 4 FEP 445, USCA 5th 1972). Evidence in this case proves two 
specific policies that violate the Equal Opportunities ordinance: One, an unwritten and unjustified affirmative action preference for 
white men; and two, a policy of refusing to consider for employment, persons who have pending complaints with the EOC. These 
specific policies are all that is involved here.

Respondents in their brief (page 13) refer to an ex parte communication from Complainant to the Examiner concerning damages. It 
appears that they refer to this letter. To refer to it as an ex parte communication seems inaccurate. A copy of the letter was sent to 
Respondent's attorney (see letter of Judith Newton, September 21, 1977). In addition, Mr. Johnson received a letter from Examiner 
(see letters of Robert L. Greene dated September 29, 1977) stating that "I will not consider Ms. Newton's September 21, 1977 letter 
as evidence of any sums involved. However, I will accept the letter as Complainant's argument as to what evidence at hearing 
proved were proper sums. In other words, it will be considered as would a brief. If Respondent wishes to submit its calculations it 
may do so." Respondents were fully aware of the letter, and have had every chance to respond. Examiner is unaware of any 
definition of ex parte communication that would embrace such circumstances.
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EQUAL OPPORTUNITIES COMMISSION
CITY OF MADISON

351 WEST WILSON STREET
MADISON, WISCONSIN

Judith Ann Newton
890 Woodrow Street
Madison, Wisconsin 53711

Complainant 

vs. 

Dr. Sara Sherkow
Madison Area Technical College
211 North Carroll Street
Madison, Wisconsin 53703

and

Madison Area Technical College
211 North Carroll Street
Madison, Wisconsin 53703

Respondent 

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF 
LAW AND ORDER 

Case No. 2242

FINDINGS OF FACT 

1. Complainant is a female. 
2. At the time of and subsequent to the events complained of, Complainant resided in Madison, 

Wisconsin. 
3. Respondent Madison Area Technical College employs persons at 211 North Carroll Street and other 

locations within the city of Madison. 
4. Respondent Sherkow is an employee of MATC, and was acting in that capacity in connection with the 

events complained of. 
5. On December 12, 1975 Complainant Judith Ann Newton received an application for employment in 

the MATC General Studies Division from Dr. Sara Sherkow. 
6. By December 16, 1976 Dr. Sherkow, Chairperson of the General Studies Division, received that 

application along with a letter and resume from Complainant. 
7. Dr. Sherkow sent a letter to Ms. Newton dated January 9, 1976 stating inter alia "at this time we do not 

anticipate a need for either new or replacement staff in your area for the next school year."
8. On January 30, 1976, Mr. Nicolo Famiglietti was hired as a part time Coach/Tutor for the Instructional 

Learning Center (ILC) in the General Studies Division. At least a portion of the function of the Center 
is to assist persons learning the English language. 

9. Parties have stipulated that Complainant was qualified for this position.
10. In January, 1976, MATC had a formal, written affirmative action plan which did not include goals or 

timetables for hiring males as faculty members in divisions in which females make up the bulk of the 
faculty. 

11. Respondents admit that MATC did have a "philosophy of affirmative action that aimed at hiring males 
in order to balance the faculty in divisions where the faculty was predominantly female." 

12. Respondents admit that sex was a major factor in hiring Mr. Famiglietti for the Coach/Tutor position. 
They wished to employ a male in order to "balance the faculty" as a consequence of the informal, 
unwritten affirmative action program discussed in Finding 11.
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13. The great majority of Vietnamese and other oriental students learning English at MATC in 1976 were 
enrolled in formal English as a Second Language classes. 

14. Nicolo Famiglietti at no time was assigned to teach English as a Second Language classes at MATC. 
15. The number of oriental students that Mr. Famiglietti came in contact with in his job at the ILC was 

very small. Perhaps as low as two or three oriental students during his entire employment. 
16. The Vietnamese and Japanese languages are linguistically very dissimilar, belonging to completely 

different categories of languages with regard to crucial elements of the entire structure of language. 
17. The problems involved in teaching English to Vietnamese speakers and Japanese speakers are entirely 

different.
18. Prior to his employment at MATC, Nicolo Famiglietti had spent eighteen (18) months teaching English 

to Japanese at a YMCA in Yokohama, Japan. 
19. On the basis of Findings 13, 14, 15, 16 and 17, the Examiner finds: (1) that the ILC Coach/Tutor 

position which Complainant applied for and Famiglietti received, did not involve significant contact 
with Vietnamese refugees; (2) that Respondents have not shown any evidence that experience teaching 
English to Japanese persons is particularly useful in teaching English to Vietnamese persons. 

20. Sometime during the week of March 15, 1977, Sherkow requested Ms. Jean Orellana, Coordinator of 
the ILC, to recommend persons to fill a vacancy as Coach/Tutor in the ILC. 

21. Ms. Orellana recommended, among others, Complainant. 
22. Dr. Sherkow informed Orellana that Ms. Newton could not be considered for employment while her 

complaint with the Madison Equal Opportunities Commission was pending. 
23. Complainant was not hired by Respondents at that time. 
24. During the summer of 1976, Complainant applied for three full time positions (Coordinator/Teacher 

and two teacher jobs) in Adult Basic Education in the General Studies Division of MATC. 
25. A committee consisting of Anh H. La, Felipe Banuelos, Robert Brien, Mary B. Celnicker, Mike Chosa, 

and Dolores Greene recommended that Respondents offer the available jobs to: Jean Orellana, Jan 
Bigalke and Ella Strother. (Complainant's exhibit 17.) It appears that those persons were subsequently 
employed. 

26. There is no evidence that Respondent Sherkow attempted to influence the members of the committee 
named in Finding 25 with respect to the employment of Ms. Newton. 

27. In January 1977 while Dr. Sherkow was on leave from MATC, Mr. Herman Freimiller, acting Chair of 
General Studies Division, hired Ms. Newton. 

CONCLUSIONS OF LAW 

1. The Complainant is a person within the definition of Section 3.23 Madison General Ordinances. 
2. Respondent is a person and employer within the definition of Section 3.23 Madison General 

Ordinances. 
3. As to the initial charge of sex discrimination in hiring, Complainant has established a prima facie case 

of sex discrimination: that case consisting of her sex; her qualifications for an available job with 
Respondent; her application for that job; her rejection; and the employment of a person of the opposite 
sex.

4. Respondent has failed to prove by a preponderance of the evidence that Nicolo Famiglietti's 
experiences in Japan amounted to a superior qualification for the position available, or that his 
qualifications were a legitimate nondiscriminatory reason for his selection rather than Ms. Newton. 

5. Affirmative action employment preferences for persons of a given race or sex may only be justified in 
order to remedy past discriminatory patterns. Respondents have failed to show any such justification 
for its affirmative action preference for white males. 

6. Respondents have not justified such a preference in programs teaching English to foreigners on the 
basis of student faculty ratio or improving status or salary of female dominated professions. 

7. Respondents have not carried their burden of establishing any legitimate nondiscriminatory reason for 
the hiring decision complained of. 
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8. Respondents then have engaged in sex discrimination prohibited by Section 3.23(7)(a)(b) of the 
Madison General Ordinances. 

9. Respondents excluded Complainant from any consideration for employment in the General Studies 
Division in March 1976. This constitutes retaliation for filing a complaint with the EOC in violation of 
Section 3.23(7)(e) of the Madison General Ordinances. 

10. Complainant has failed to prove any negative actions taken by Respondents in regard to her application 
for full time employment in the summer of 1976 related to her charges of discrimination. No violation 
of Section 3.23(7)(e) is found in regard to those employment decisions made by Respondents during 
that time.

11. Back pay should be calculated on the basis of what the Complainant would have made had she been 
employed. 

12. Sums earned by Complainant from her job at Omega School should not operate to reduce back pay in 
the circumstances of this case. 

ORDER 

It is hereby ordered that within fifteen (15) days after this order becomes final: 

1. Respondent MATC shall pay to Complainant back pay calculated as follows:
A. Complainant should be paid for twenty (20) hours per week for every week the staff was 

employed in the ILC from January 20, 1976 through December 31, 1976. 
B. That pay should be calculated at the rate paid to an employee classified (IV, I) on Respondent's 

pay scale, as of January 20, 1976. 
C. Back pay shall include an increase of $0.50 per hour for the time between July 12 and December 

31, 1976 inclusive. 
D. In addition, any additional longevity or experience pay that Complainant would have been 

eligible for after her hiring in 1977, had she had an additional one year of experience teaching at 
MATC, shall be paid for the hours worked by Complainant from January 1977 to the present. 

E. Interest at the rate of 6 percent per annum shall be paid on all back pay.
2. Respondent MATC shall credit Complainant with an additional one year part time teaching experience 

at MATC for all purposes of benefits, salary, and competitive status, for which experience or seniority 
is considered. 

3.  Respondents shall cease and desist from granting employment preferences to males in those positions 
that are predominantly filled by females. This does not prohibit the employment of males in any 
position. However, no affirmative action preference for males on the basis of their sex is permitted. 

4. Proof of compliance with the above order shall be submitted to the Equal Opportunities Commission 
within twenty (20) days after this order becomes final.

It is so ordered. BY COMMISSIONERS: Baum, Crawford, Dunham, Gassman, Goldstein, Hall, Kelly, 
Litvak, Sperstad, and Yeadon. DISSENTING: none. ABSTAINING: none. 

Respondents exceptions to the Recommended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order denied. BY 
COMMISSIONERS: Baum, Crawford, Dunham, Gassman, Hall, Kelly, Litvak, Sperstad, and Yeadon. 
DISSENTING: none. ABSTAINING: Goldstein. 

Complainant's additional exceptions to the Recommended Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Order 
denied. BY COMMISSIONERS: Baum, Crawford, Dunham, Gassman, Goldstein, Hall, Kelly, Litvak, 
Sperstad, and Yeadon. DISSENTING: none. ABSTAINING: none 

Dated at Madison, Wisconsin this 20th day of February, 1978.

John J. Kelley, President 
EqualOpportunities Commission 

Page 12 of 12Case No. 2242



<<
  /ASCII85EncodePages false
  /AllowTransparency false
  /AutoPositionEPSFiles true
  /AutoRotatePages /None
  /Binding /Left
  /CalGrayProfile (Dot Gain 20%)
  /CalRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CalCMYKProfile (U.S. Web Coated \050SWOP\051 v2)
  /sRGBProfile (sRGB IEC61966-2.1)
  /CannotEmbedFontPolicy /Error
  /CompatibilityLevel 1.4
  /CompressObjects /Tags
  /CompressPages true
  /ConvertImagesToIndexed true
  /PassThroughJPEGImages true
  /CreateJobTicket false
  /DefaultRenderingIntent /Default
  /DetectBlends true
  /DetectCurves 0.0000
  /ColorConversionStrategy /CMYK
  /DoThumbnails false
  /EmbedAllFonts true
  /EmbedOpenType false
  /ParseICCProfilesInComments true
  /EmbedJobOptions true
  /DSCReportingLevel 0
  /EmitDSCWarnings false
  /EndPage -1
  /ImageMemory 1048576
  /LockDistillerParams false
  /MaxSubsetPct 100
  /Optimize true
  /OPM 1
  /ParseDSCComments true
  /ParseDSCCommentsForDocInfo true
  /PreserveCopyPage true
  /PreserveDICMYKValues true
  /PreserveEPSInfo true
  /PreserveFlatness true
  /PreserveHalftoneInfo false
  /PreserveOPIComments true
  /PreserveOverprintSettings true
  /StartPage 1
  /SubsetFonts true
  /TransferFunctionInfo /Apply
  /UCRandBGInfo /Preserve
  /UsePrologue false
  /ColorSettingsFile ()
  /AlwaysEmbed [ true
  ]
  /NeverEmbed [ true
  ]
  /AntiAliasColorImages false
  /CropColorImages true
  /ColorImageMinResolution 300
  /ColorImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleColorImages true
  /ColorImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /ColorImageResolution 300
  /ColorImageDepth -1
  /ColorImageMinDownsampleDepth 1
  /ColorImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeColorImages true
  /ColorImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterColorImages true
  /ColorImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /ColorACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /ColorImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000ColorImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasGrayImages false
  /CropGrayImages true
  /GrayImageMinResolution 300
  /GrayImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleGrayImages true
  /GrayImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /GrayImageResolution 300
  /GrayImageDepth -1
  /GrayImageMinDownsampleDepth 2
  /GrayImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeGrayImages true
  /GrayImageFilter /DCTEncode
  /AutoFilterGrayImages true
  /GrayImageAutoFilterStrategy /JPEG
  /GrayACSImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /GrayImageDict <<
    /QFactor 0.15
    /HSamples [1 1 1 1] /VSamples [1 1 1 1]
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayACSImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /JPEG2000GrayImageDict <<
    /TileWidth 256
    /TileHeight 256
    /Quality 30
  >>
  /AntiAliasMonoImages false
  /CropMonoImages true
  /MonoImageMinResolution 1200
  /MonoImageMinResolutionPolicy /OK
  /DownsampleMonoImages true
  /MonoImageDownsampleType /Bicubic
  /MonoImageResolution 1200
  /MonoImageDepth -1
  /MonoImageDownsampleThreshold 1.50000
  /EncodeMonoImages true
  /MonoImageFilter /CCITTFaxEncode
  /MonoImageDict <<
    /K -1
  >>
  /AllowPSXObjects false
  /CheckCompliance [
    /None
  ]
  /PDFX1aCheck false
  /PDFX3Check false
  /PDFXCompliantPDFOnly false
  /PDFXNoTrimBoxError true
  /PDFXTrimBoxToMediaBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXSetBleedBoxToMediaBox true
  /PDFXBleedBoxToTrimBoxOffset [
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
    0.00000
  ]
  /PDFXOutputIntentProfile ()
  /PDFXOutputConditionIdentifier ()
  /PDFXOutputCondition ()
  /PDFXRegistryName ()
  /PDFXTrapped /False

  /CreateJDFFile false
  /Description <<

    /BGR <>
    /CHS <FEFF4f7f75288fd94e9b8bbe5b9a521b5efa7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065876863900275284e8e9ad88d2891cf76845370524d53705237300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c676562535f00521b5efa768400200050004400460020658768633002>
    /CHT <FEFF4f7f752890194e9b8a2d7f6e5efa7acb7684002000410064006f006200650020005000440046002065874ef69069752865bc9ad854c18cea76845370524d5370523786557406300260a853ef4ee54f7f75280020004100630072006f0062006100740020548c002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee553ca66f49ad87248672c4f86958b555f5df25efa7acb76840020005000440046002065874ef63002>
    /CZE <>
    /DAN <>
    /DEU <>
    /ESP <>
    /ETI <>
    /FRA <>
    /GRE <>

    /HRV (Za stvaranje Adobe PDF dokumenata najpogodnijih za visokokvalitetni ispis prije tiskanja koristite ove postavke.  Stvoreni PDF dokumenti mogu se otvoriti Acrobat i Adobe Reader 5.0 i kasnijim verzijama.)
    /HUN <>
    /ITA <>
    /JPN <FEFF9ad854c18cea306a30d730ea30d730ec30b951fa529b7528002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020658766f8306e4f5c6210306b4f7f75283057307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a30674f5c62103055308c305f0020005000440046002030d530a130a430eb306f3001004100630072006f0062006100740020304a30883073002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e003000204ee5964d3067958b304f30533068304c3067304d307e305930023053306e8a2d5b9a306b306f30d530a930f330c8306e57cb30818fbc307f304c5fc59808306730593002>
    /KOR <FEFFc7740020c124c815c7440020c0acc6a9d558c5ec0020ace0d488c9c80020c2dcd5d80020c778c1c4c5d00020ac00c7a50020c801d569d55c002000410064006f0062006500200050004400460020bb38c11cb97c0020c791c131d569b2c8b2e4002e0020c774b807ac8c0020c791c131b41c00200050004400460020bb38c11cb2940020004100630072006f0062006100740020bc0f002000410064006f00620065002000520065006100640065007200200035002e00300020c774c0c1c5d0c11c0020c5f40020c2180020c788c2b5b2c8b2e4002e>
    /LTH <>
    /LVI <>
    /NLD (Gebruik deze instellingen om Adobe PDF-documenten te maken die zijn geoptimaliseerd voor prepress-afdrukken van hoge kwaliteit. De gemaakte PDF-documenten kunnen worden geopend met Acrobat en Adobe Reader 5.0 en hoger.)
    /NOR <>
    /POL <>
    /PTB <>
    /RUM <>
    /RUS <>
    /SKY <>
    /SLV <>
    /SUO <>
    /SVE <>
    /TUR <>
    /UKR <>
    /ENU (Use these settings to create Adobe PDF documents best suited for high-quality prepress printing.  Created PDF documents can be opened with Acrobat and Adobe Reader 5.0 and later.)
  >>
  /Namespace [
    (Adobe)
    (Common)
    (1.0)
  ]
  /OtherNamespaces [
    <<
      /AsReaderSpreads false
      /CropImagesToFrames true
      /ErrorControl /WarnAndContinue
      /FlattenerIgnoreSpreadOverrides false
      /IncludeGuidesGrids false
      /IncludeNonPrinting false
      /IncludeSlug false
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (InDesign)
        (4.0)
      ]
      /OmitPlacedBitmaps false
      /OmitPlacedEPS false
      /OmitPlacedPDF false
      /SimulateOverprint /Legacy
    >>
    <<
      /AddBleedMarks false
      /AddColorBars false
      /AddCropMarks false
      /AddPageInfo false
      /AddRegMarks false
      /ConvertColors /ConvertToCMYK
      /DestinationProfileName ()
      /DestinationProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /Downsample16BitImages true
      /FlattenerPreset <<
        /PresetSelector /MediumResolution
      >>
      /FormElements false
      /GenerateStructure false
      /IncludeBookmarks false
      /IncludeHyperlinks false
      /IncludeInteractive false
      /IncludeLayers false
      /IncludeProfiles false
      /MultimediaHandling /UseObjectSettings
      /Namespace [
        (Adobe)
        (CreativeSuite)
        (2.0)
      ]
      /PDFXOutputIntentProfileSelector /DocumentCMYK
      /PreserveEditing true
      /UntaggedCMYKHandling /LeaveUntagged
      /UntaggedRGBHandling /UseDocumentProfile
      /UseDocumentBleed false
    >>
  ]
>> setdistillerparams
<<
  /HWResolution [2400 2400]
  /PageSize [612.000 792.000]
>> setpagedevice


